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From THE JOURNAL OF THE FLORIDA MEDICAL ASSOCIATION, IIC.
' Se iembor, 1945

THE DUVAL COUNTY HOSPITAL

|

The site of tha "old" Duval County Hospitael, tracta 27 and 28, in a

subdivision of Northeagt Jaoksynvillo lmown ag Oulziend, (today_thg original
% ' ank eots) waec purchaged

HTF- 5G)e One thousand dollers
was gspecified 8s the monetary consideration involved (167). During the oarly
eichteon=-seventies the following Wwuildings woro constiructods a wooden building
which sorved es s hogpital ward, a birick building which vwas uzsod as an asylunm,
a small "double-roomrd”™ building czlled the dead and wash houze and several
small, ono story buildings, one & kitchon end anothor & chickon houge. 1In 1877
o ncw end more spacious one story building vms erooted snd called "the new hos=
pitale™ (168 Thus, it will bo sern that, in 1877, thoro wero three buildings
available fu. tho roccption.of patientece Tha group of buildings as a whole
was called " he Duval County Hospital end Asylum"™ and somotimes was referred
to incorrectly ss “The County Poor Houso." (16€9)

No records were kopt for tho Hospital end Asylum up to March, 1876,
but frcam March 1 to Deoember 31, 1876, thero were 31 admissions end 9 deoths.
(170) Tihen the county commissioners came into office abous Jaauary 1, 1877,
it was said that the county was "burthened® with a larze number of pensioners
for whom tho outley of money was unnocessarily largee In the Hospital and
Lsylum an everare of 8 pationts was beinz maintained for ﬁane care @ super-
Izteadent recelved & moabkbly.zalary of $45, @ phycicien £25 end @ cook iDe
., oounty commissionors discontinued outdoor relief, Dre C. Jo Kenworthy was
placed in charge of the Hospital and Asylum, end Dr. Columbus Drew was engapged
as the "County Physiciene®™ A lr. Wright served as supeorintecndonte During the
year 1877, 136 patients were admitted to tho inetitution, 115 of whom were
uader medical troatmente There were 28 deaths during the year. In December,

1877, the ta cost was reduced from {8 per patient monthly for attendants
elone to $3.73 por patient monthly for total maintenance. (170,171
R

Drs Drew's "Report of Cases of Diseaso"™ treated at the Hospital from
January 1, 1877, to January 1, 1878, is as followss

" DISFASE ADMITTED DISCHARGED DIED UNDER TREATMENT

Valvular Heart Diseage - 1 1
Epilepsy 1 o]
Fover, Remittent 16 15 1
TFever, Intermittent ‘16 14 2
Fover, Typho-malarial 3 2’ 1
Pneumonia ' g 1 12
General Debility 4 3 - ) 1
Inflem:iation of the Brain . 1 1
Bronchitis 1 1 e,
Abscess of the Liver 1 1
Coagcstion of tho Liver 2 2 ~
Eczoma of tho Feot 1 1 (LS
Acute Motritis 1 1

13 2 10 1

Phtnisis Pulmonalis

-~

’ A el 4 g . - [QN
M PUSROT U DL SR U S R TR WIS PO Y




-.0

' DISEASE ADMITTED DISCHARGED DIED UNDER TREATMENT

Sorofula

Chronic Bright's Disease
Chronic Paralysis

Opium Habit

Ascites

Chronic Rheumatism !
Marasmus L
Dog Bite

Fraotures

Uloers

Burns .
S8yphilis = 1
Gangrene of the Legs ° '
Caries of Bone X
Cystic Testioles
Gonorrhea

Urethal Strioture
Peridneal Absocess
Cateraot

Prolapsus Uteri
Pregnanoy

0ld Age

Injuries from Cars
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Total 115 28 19

An editorial on the Hospital and Asylum appeared in s looal paper
during *he fall of 1877+ The style is so quaint end the subjeot matter of
ruoh interest that the editoriel is presented here almost in its entirety.

THE DUVAL COUNTY HOSPITAL AND ASYLUM

On lest Sunday (October 7, 1877) a reporter of the Sun and Press
visited the above institution to asocertain in what condi tion it is, and what
improvements have lately been made. On approaching by the Oaklend Road, past
the graveyard, the old building whioh formerly and still fulfills the conditions
of an asylum, oomes in sight firsty to the rear of this about 235 feet, is the old
hospital wardsy baok of this is the double=roomed building oallel wash and dead
house; east of the asylum, some 75 feet, but further baok from the road, is the
new hospitel, while between these two is the well and bath house, and baok of
this again, the kitohen and outbuildings, which inolude a c¢hicken house--all
fronting to the south, and one-=story buildings. Around these county buildings,

a suitable fenoe is now being put up, whioh keeps out the hogs and restrains

the 'mates from taking extended walks. The asylum has had a oheap verandah

put up on the south side . . . and has been odapboarded . « « to keep out the
rain . . + Inside it is divided into 4 ordinarily sized roomse«the 2 larger

of which are “he mele end female wards, with each 8 or 10 inmates « . ¢+ The
other 2 rooms the Superintendent's end a general storeroome. All these rooms

are kept in a_ ocleanly a condition es possible. . « V¥hitewash, eto., has been
used freely. The inmates here, on being questioned, said they had good food
with good treatment, and their appearance would ind icate it. . » o
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The old hospital ward is a struoture about 40 feet long by 10 or 12 wide
with 4 rooms and supplied with light and ventilation by 4 doors, but windows are
now being placed in each apartmente One of these rooms is the syphilitio ward,

2 will be used as sleeping rooms. . . and the 4th 1s the provision room, where 1is
flour, rioce, hominy, sugar, oraokers, ooffee, tea, onions, butter, lard, salt, beef
and pork and other grooeries from Holbrook's, in variety and quantity suffioient

to show that all the inmates of the pk oe have good food, 8s indeed they all admit.
The dead and wash house (The name "dead and wash house" is quite strikimg but, never-
theless, appropriates It was the ocustom in those days always to wash the bodies of
the deade=gometimes with oeremony. Mr. Zephaniah Kingsley, who died about thirty
years prior to this period, direoted in his will that his body "be exoused from the
usual indisoreet formalities and parade of washing.") is a new building about 15
feet square and supplies vhat has been needed theres The wellehouse is also divided
into 2 rooms, one 6f whioh contains the new well, with its foroe pump and 150 feet
of hose, and the other a bathing tub and other aids to oleanliness.

The kitchen house has 2 rooms, 1 of which is the kitchen proper, whioh
was kept in a very oleanly oondition and here is the Sunday dinner for all the well
ones oonsisting of a joint of meat with rioe puddinge.

The new hospital building, ococupled 8 weeks, is 85 feet long by 22 wide,
with an 8 foot verandah all around it, while inside the oceilings are 14 feet highe
It is divided into two wardse-male and female=-=which are separated by the nurse's
room and the dispensaryj; the whole interior, even to the beds with their moss
nattresses and white ooverlets being clean, sweet end airy es any housekeeper
would desires No oommunioation is allowed between these wards, not between the
hospital and asylum, without a permit from the superintendent, Mre Wrighte The
bill of fair for those in the hospital is, of oourse, better than for the asylum
inmates, and the order left by Dr. Drew for a patient, ocomprised milk, rioce, ohioken
broth, eto., which shows that nourishing food is oonsidered a necessary adjunot to
this department. In front of this building the ground has been laid down with
bermuda grass and a pleagsant s wn will be the result soon. + &

The work of reconstruotion at this institution has been oarried out by
Dre Co Jo Kemworthy, of the “ounty Commissioners, who is working at it as a lebor
of love end deserves reoognition for the good he has aoccomplished:. . o (168)

Christmas dinner at the Hospital and Asylum in 1877 was a great event.
(172, 178) The following appeared in a looal paper on the last day of year 1877s

If those who liberally responded when oalled upon for donations to a
Christmas feast for the people living in & oounty asylum, oould have been present
and seen the joy of those people they would have been a thousand times repaide o o
The table was spread in the femele ward of the hospital, and around it were
gathered the inmates==to the number of about thirty--and a few invited guests.
At the head of the table sat County Commissioners Kemworthy and Framnois. o « and
at the fodt Dr. C. Drew, physiolan to the institution. . » =

There was roast beef, turkey, chioken, chioken ple, boiled ham, and
other meats; vegetables of all kinde; an enormous plum pudding, oakes, ioe orean
and coffee. After dinner several resolutions were handed up by inmates, one of
these thanking the people of Jacksonville for their goodness of heart in providing
this feast, and €nother. . o oomplimentary to the Superintendent, Dre Ce Jes Kane
worthy end the physiolany Dr. C. Drew, for their ocourtesy, kindness and sympathy
during the year past. The resolutions being disposed of, some nuts, raisins and
oandy were distributed, and tobeooo and oigars givem out. The rules were generally
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suspended and every person enjoyed himself in whatever he liked. (Nearly sixty

years k ter, on April 18, 1936, when Dr. R. B. Molver was president, the Staff

gave another "Hospital Dinner." On this oooasion Dr. R. He MoGinnis, after thirjye
five years of gratuitous servios, was honored at the time of his retirement. A
plaque, upon which a profile of Dr. MoGinnis had been mounted, was presented by

Dr. Q. Enox Simpson, Chief of the Department of Surgery, and was accepted on

behalf of the Hospital by Mr. Frank E. Jennings, Chairman of the Welfare Boarde (167)

o o o As 1t 18 the olose of the year in which much has been done for the
institution, it seeams fitting to say something about the improvements inaugurated
and carried to a sucoessful ending. A majority of our readers will remember the
filthy hovel for it deserved no better appellation vwhich passed for a county poore
house two or three ycars ago . « « The difference between the pla oe then and now
is as distinot and broesd as the differenoe between hell and heaven. In the first
place the ground was oleared. of all rubbish . . « plowed, sot with Bermuda grass,
and no lawn in the oity is smoother or looks bettere A substantial fence was
built and whitewashede The two old buildings were thoroughly purified, fitted
with good glaszed windows and blinds; whereas before, the only openings were the
doors ¢ ¢ ¢ East of these a new hospital building was ereoted . . ¢« A few feet
from the northewest corner of the Hospital, « . . 1s the kitchen. A small building
olose by the kitohen contains wash and bath rooms end in the north end a compartment
for laying out the deade A well was sunk in the open place between the various
buildings, fitted with a fbroing pump and about 200 feet of hoses The wisdom of
this provision was demonstrated a few days ago, when the hospital took fire . . o«
and was promptly extinguished by the use of the « ¢« » hose «ce ¢ The aggregate
oost of the above improvements was about $2,600¢ o o

The oemétery oonneoted with this institution has been fenoed and put
in good order. Each grave 1s numbered, and an entry of all the known partioculars
oonoerning the deceased is made in the hospital records How was it before? The
dead were buried, to be sure, among the pines and saw-gress, no distinguishing mark
to the grass, end the cattle graszed and hogs rooted above theme ¢ o (173)

In the late eighteeneseventies and early eighteen-eighties the institution

grew little. In 1885 it still could boast of only the three one-story buildings

for the reoeption of patients. Acoommodations were, however, more adequate. Thirty
male end 10 female patients ocould be hospitalized, but still the demand for admis-
sion exceeded the aoccommodations. In 1885 the buildings were identified as being
"@ithated on high ground in Oekland, arhalf mile north of the fairgrounds. The
broad verandahs end abundant foliage, flowers end vines were plotured es giving

the institution a homelike appearanoe, and the buildings were desoribed as being
clean and well ventilated. Four thousand dollars was the per annum operating ocost,
$.,200 of which was furnished by the United States government beoause of the marine
prtients who were hospitalized there.

From 1885 to the late eighteen~eighties Dr. H. Robinson served as super=
intendent, without pay, while Dr. Drew served es the attending physioien, with a
small salary, estimated to reimburse him for the medicine he furnished the siocke.
S8ister Mary Annq%f S8aint Joseph's Convent mede frequent visits to the institution
and was loved by alle (174,175,176,177) Patients who suffered with yellow fever
during the epidemio of 1888 were not hospitaliged theree (For la ter history of the
Duval County Hospital soe "The Duval County Hospital®™ by Dr. R. He MoG{nnil,
oiroa 1926, and the Florida Times=Union, June 1, 1924, and April 12, 16 and 18, 1936.)

The piotures of the hospital shown in the. acoompanying illustrations are
as it appeared about 1918, (178) Ko piotures of the building desoribed are availables
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